
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, June 15, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Proclamation recognizing July as Park and Recreation Month (Ramsey)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor seating
area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, and consumption of alcohol in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for property located at 1180 Madison Road
(Alibi Bar & Grill) (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of June 1st and special meeting of June 4,
2015 (Stottler)

b. Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B”
Liquor License for BRBK, LLC, d/b/a Alibi Bar and Grill, located at 1180 Madison Road,
Wendy K. Drake, Agent, for a Temporary Outdoor Premises Extension (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

c. Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B”
Liquor License for Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, LLC, located at 430 East Grand Avenue, Suite
102, Emily Hopper, Agent, for an Outdoor Premises Extension (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

d. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart
Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road, from Michael A. Lane, Jr. to Leah R.
Wampole (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

e. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located
at 2787 Prairie Avenue, from Juan Mendoza Ochoa to Elliott Stubbendick (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0



f. Resolution approving Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License renewal for
Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, Elliott Stubbendick,
Agent, for License Period July 1, 2015 -June 30, 2016 (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

g. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a boarding house in a C-1, Office
District, for property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue (Christensen)
Refer to Plan Commission

h. Application for an amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded
Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in a DH, Development Holding District, for property
located at 2100 Newark Road (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

7. ORDINANCES - none

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION- none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution approving Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development
Agreement for Olympian Hills Apartments (Christensen)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: June 10, 2015
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk
City of Beloit
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs are an integral part of communities throughout this
country, including here in Beloit, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, our parks and recreation are vitally important to establishing and maintaining the
quality of life in our communities, ensuring the health of all citizens, and contributing to the economic and
environmental well-being of a community and region; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs build healthy, active communities that aid in the
prevention of chronic disease, provide therapeutic recreation services for those who are mentally or
physically disabled, and also improve the mental and emotional health of all citizens; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs increase a community’s economic prosperity through
increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the attraction and retention
of businesses, and crime reduction; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation areas are fundamental to the environmental well-being of our
community; and

WHEREAS, parks and natural recreation areas improve water quality, protect groundwater,
prevent flooding, improve the quality of the air we breathe, provide vegetative buffers to development,
and produce habitat for wildlife; and

WHEREAS, our parks and natural recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our
community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and recreate outdoors; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and Recreation
Month; and

WHEREAS, Beloit, Wisconsin recognizes the benefits derived from parks and recreation
resources

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin, hereby designates that July is recognized as Park and Recreation Month in the City
of Beloit.

Adopted this 15th day of June, 2015.
City Council of the City of Beloit

_________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

_____________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A
TEMPORARY OUTDOOR SEATING AREA AND TEMPORARY OUTDOOR SALES,

POSSESSION, & CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1180 MADISON ROAD

WHEREAS, the application of Wendy Drake of The Alibi for a Conditional Use Permit to allow
a temporary outdoor seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1180 Madison Road, having been
considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose
and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on
file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor
seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, for the property located at 1180 Madison Road in the City of Beloit, for the
following described premises:

Commencing at the Southwest corner of Lot 14, thence Easterly 263 feet to the Southeast corner of Lot 20, thence Northerly 25
feet, thence Northwesterly 158.5 feet to at point, thence Southwesterly 119.73 feet, thence Southwesterly18.15 feet, thence
Southwesterly 18 feet, thence Westerly 40 feet, thence Southerly 36.5 feet to the point of beginning, all being a part of Block 2,
of Laforge’s Addition, situated in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin. (a/k/a 1180 Madison Road, parcel number 1274-
0436)

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are deemed necessary for the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an outdoor seating area in the parking lot for a customer
appreciation event held by The Alibi once per year in the month of July, indefinitely.

2. Prior to the establishment of this conditional use, the applicant must get the current license
allowing the sale of alcohol on the patio amended by the City Clerk’s Office to allow for the
temporary sale of alcohol outside of the patio area.

3. Prior to the establishment of the conditional use, the applicant shall provide proof of the parking
agreement with the owner of the surface lot adjacent to the property.

4. Music must not be played in the outdoor seating area after 10:00 PM.
5. The event can only be held once per year in the month of July between the hours of 7:00 AM and

11:00 PM.
6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan

Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and
Building Services Director may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 15th day of June, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler City Clerk



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 1180 Madison Road

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Wendy Drake, on behalf of The Alibi, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor
seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial
District, for the property located at 1180 Madison Road. The applicant is seeking a permit to allow The Alibi to hold a yearly,
one-day customer appreciation outdoor party.

Key Issues:
 Approval of the Conditional Use Permit request would allow the applicant to host an annual customer appreciation

celebration on one day in the month of July. Approval of the permit would be indefinite and future events would not
require renewals.

 The applicant has submitted a site plan showing the location of the proposed stage area for a live band and the
location of the snow fence enclosure. The snow fence will enclose the entire parking lot in order to denote the event
area and to ensure alcohol is not consumed outside of the property limits.

 The event will feature a live band and will likely generate higher-than-average noise levels. The applicant must obey
the noise ordinance in Section 15.10 of the Municipal Code and not generate unreasonable sound levels that will
disturb residents in the vicinity.

 The owners of The Alibi currently have permission to use the adjacent surface parking lot owned by Schultz Power
equipment. The surface parking lot should provide adequate space for event patrons to park.

 The Fire Department noted that the building’s occupancy load cannot be exceeded and that all exits must be well-
marked and clear of obstructions. The Police Department had not issues or concerns regarding the event.

 Portable toilets will be used to provide extra restrooms for the event.
 The applicant currently has a Conditional Use Permit and license that allows alcohol service, possession, and

consumption on the small patio area. In order to serve alcohol outside during the event, the license needs to be
amended to allow for the temporary sale of alcohol outside of the patio area.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 3, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of
the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning Staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 3, 2015 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2015-03

Applicant: Wendy Drake Owner: Dan and Wendy Drake Location: 1180 Madison Road

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Restaurant/Bar Parcel Size: .4706 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Wendy Drake, on behalf of The Alibi, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor
seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial
District, for the property located at 1180 Madison Road. The applicant is seeking a permit to allow The Alibi to hold a yearly,
one-day customer appreciation party outside in the parking lot.

Key Issues:
 Approval of the Conditional Use Permit request would allow the applicant to host an annual customer appreciation

celebration on one day in the month of July. Approval of the permit would be indefinite and future events would not
require renewals.

 The applicant has submitted a site plan showing the location of the proposed stage area for a live band and the
location of the snow fence enclosure.

o The snow fence will enclose the entire parking lot in order to denote the event area and to ensure alcohol is
not consumed outside of the property limits.

 The event will feature a live band and will likely generate higher-than-average noise levels. The applicant must obey
the noise ordinance in Chapter 15.10 of the municipal code and not generate unreasonable sound levels that will
disturb residents in the vicinity.

 The applicant needs to provide supplemental parking in lieu of the parking lot that will be used to hold the event.
o The owners of The Alibi currently have permission to use the adjacent surface parking lot owned by Schultz

Power Equipment for overflow parking. The surface parking lot should provide adequate space for event
patrons to park.

 The Fire Department noted that the building’s occupancy load cannot be exceeded and that all exits must be well-
marked and clear of obstructions.

 Portable toilets will be used to provide extra restrooms for the event.
 The applicant currently has a Conditional Use Permit that allows alcohol service, possession, and consumption on

the small patio area. In order to serve alcohol outside during the event, the Conditional Use Permit needs to be
amended to allow for the temporary sale of alcohol outside of the patio area.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to eighteen (18) nearby property owners. No comments were received.
 Findings of Fact

o Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval, the proposed annual one day event will not be detrimental
to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

o Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The conditional use will not injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties. The Alibi is located on
a busy commercial corridor and moderate noise from the event should not negatively affect any of
the businesses in the area.

o Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood of
the subject property;

 The conditional use will not diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood. Due to the event
only occurring one day per year and the time and noise constraints to be placed on the event,
property values will not be negatively affected.

o Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 Not Applicable.
o Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council

 Not Applicable.
o Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve the

proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;
 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.

o Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 Not Applicable.

o Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Due to the one day per year nature of the event, the comprehensive plan was not used as a guide during the analysis.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary
outdoor seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, for the property located at 1180 Madison Road, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the
following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an outdoor seating area in the parking lot for a customer appreciation event
held by The Alibi once per year in the month of July, indefinitely.

2. Prior to the establishment of this conditional use, the applicant must get the current license allowing the sale of
alcohol on the patio amended by the City Clerk’s Office to allow for the temporary sale of alcohol outside of the patio
area.

3. Prior to the establishment of the conditional use, the applicant shall provide proof of the parking agreement with the
owner of the surface lot adjacent to the property.

4. Music must not be played in the outdoor seating area after 10:00 PM.
5. The event can only be held once per year in the month of July between the hours of 7:00 AM and 11:00 PM.
6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and

City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may approve
minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
Zoning and Location Map, Property Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council



June 15 Staff Report, Conditional Use, 1180 Madison Road City Council







PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, June 1, 2015

Presiding: Charles Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: David Luebke (arrived at 7:19 p.m.)

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall by President Haynes.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. President Haynes introduced the new City Manager Lori S. Curtis Luther. He said that this is
Manager Luther’s first meeting and day of work, and said that he felt that she is one of the most
qualified people he has ever met. Manager Luther said that it was a pleasure to be here and her
family will be relocating soon. She added that she felt this is the perfect choice and excellent fit
for her professionally and for her family. Manager Luther said that following in the footsteps of
City Manager Emeritus Larry Arft is a big challenge, but felt that with the council’s guidance and
help from staff, the City will continue the positive momentum that Beloit has enjoyed well into the
future.

b. President Haynes introduced the new City Clerk Lori Stottler. He said that Ms. Stottler is the
former County Clerk and comes with amazing credentials and qualifications. Ms. Stottler said
that she too was positive that she had made the right choice and was honored to have been
selected for the position and is looking forward to learning everything from her very capable staff.

c. Presentation of Receipt of Rock River Trail Coalition Award was given by Manager Emeritus
Arft. He welcomed Manager Luther said that the City was presented the 2015 Protector Award
from the Coalition. He said that the city has been an Eco municipality since 2007 and has done a
wide range of projects. He said that there were three major policy initiatives that were recognized
by the Coalition that included the City’s Greenbelt work along the Rock River and Turtle Creek,
the shoreline stabilization project, and the Winter Storm Program.

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – none

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

 Bill Dorr, 836 Church Street, welcomed the new City Manager and addressed the council
regarding inner city initiatives and concerns with parking at Park Avenue Apartments and
requested a committee with a Council person and city staff to draft an ordinance similar to
Waukesha Wisconsin to permit parking from 3:00 – 5:00 a.m. for the whole Beloit or specific
neighborhoods.

 Christopher Hoover, 2536 S. Belmont Drive, spoke on support of raising the minimum wage
to $9.00 an hour and listed reasons for the change. He was addressing the Council this
evening as a Turner High School student for his political science class.

.
6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilors De Forest and Kincaid made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda items 6.a. through
6.e. Motion carried. The Consent Agenda is accepted, approved, adopted or referred and acted upon
as required by state and local code by a vote of 6-0.

a. The minutes of the special and regular meetings of May 18, 2015 were approved.



b. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Beloit Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Madison Road BP,
located at 1343 Madison Road, from Gary O. Shoemaker to Pyarali Punjwani was adopted.
File 8688

c. Resolution approving Renewal of Alcohol Beverage Licenses for License Period July 1, 2015-
June 30, 2016 was adopted. File 8688

d. Resolution approving the Renewal of an Annual Mobile Home Park License for the property
located at 2601 Colley Road was adopted. File 8124

e. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor seating area and
temporary outdoor sales, possession, and consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, for property located at 1180 Madison Road (Alibi Bar & Grill) was referred to
Plan Commission. File 8222

7. ORDINANCES– none

8. APPOINTMENTS– none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor Hendrix said that she attended the Rock County Christian School graduation and
will be attending the Beloit Memorial High School graduation. She announced the Summer
Gospel Jam event on June 20

th
and invited all to attend.

 Councilor Luebke welcomed Manager Luther and thanked Manager Emeritus Arft for more
than a decade of service to Beloit.

 Councilor Kelly said she was excited about being in the Memorial Day Parade with the other
Councilors and said she was excited about her son graduating this year.

 Councilor Sloniker said that she attended the Golf Committee meeting, the EMS open house,
and the closing of Morgan School event. She said that Fran Fruzen was honored to have a
school named after him and noted his accomplishments in education. She said she
appreciated her time to serve with Manager Emeritus Arft and welcomed Manager Luther.

 Councilor De Forest said that she attended the EMS open house and said one highlight was
speaking with one of the three doctors that staff MD1 which is a wonderful resource for city
residents. She attended the State of Rock County Health presentation a collaboration of all
Rock County Hospitals along with the Health Department and UW-Extension to study issues
that impact health and develop strategic plans for Rock County. She attended Blackhawk
Technical College GED and Community Action PATH program graduations. She said that
she is absolutely thrilled with Manager Luther for choosing Beloit and was happy that she and
her family are invested in the community. She thanked Manager Emeritus Arft for his
dedication and service to the city and its residents and also recently retired Mike Ciaramita
for his service to the City. She said that she is thrilled to have Lori Stottler as the new City
Clerk and recognized her knowledge, professionalism and personal commitment.

 Councilor Kincaid wished Manager Emeritus Arft the best, commended City Clerk Lori Stottler
on her past endeavors with the county, and encouraged everyone to attend the Memorial Day
Parade in the future.

 Councilor Haynes said that 140 members of the Community came to the retirement dinner for
Manager Emeritus Arft to wish him well. He said that Manager Emeritus Arft taught him
almost everything he knows of Public Administration and Government and that he will miss
him. He thanked Manager Luther for coming to Beloit and is convinced that she is the right
person for this job.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Library Director Nick Dimassis thanked Manager Emeritus Arft and his wife Karen Arft for their
support of the Library. He introduced Tina Kakuske, Head of Adult Services, who gave a
PowerPoint presentation and reviewed the Library Reading Summer Program activities. She
said that the summer library program will begin June 13 and will address three different but
related themes for youth, teens and adults all having to do with Hero’s. Councilor De Forest said
that the presentation was very informative and she was very excited, especially for teens to “read
down library fines”, and asked how the Library promoted the programs. Ms. Kakuske said that
youth flyers were distributed to elementary schools, and teen flyers were distributed during a



presentation at the high school. Councilor DeForest asked that a link to the Library be placed on
their website: https://beloitlibrary.org/

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS– none

12. Councilors Hendrix and Sloniker made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:53pm. Motion carried.

Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC, Deputy City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by Council:



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
Special Meeting
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
Thursday, June 4, 2015

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina D. Hendrix, Ana Kelly, David Luebke and Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: Chuck Kincaid

1. President Haynes called the meeting to order at 6:10 p.m. in the 4
th

Floor City Manager’s Conference Room
at City Hall.

2. Councilor’s Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to adjourn into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.
19.85(1)(c) to consider the employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a
public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. Motion
carried 6-0. The Council proceeded into closed session at 6:11 p.m. (Councilor Sloniker left the meeting at
7:50 p.m.)

3. Councilor’s Luebke and Hendrix made a motion to adjourn the closed session. Motion carried 5-0. Meeting
adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date Approved by Council:



RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CLASS “B” BEER AND RESERVE “CLASS

B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR BRBK, LLC, D/B/A ALIBI BAR AND GRILL, FOR A
TEMPORARY OUTDOOR PREMISE EXTENSION

WHEREAS, an application has been received to amend the licensed premise
description for BRBK, LLC, D/B/A Alibi Bar and Grill, 1180 Madison Road; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of a temporary outdoor premise extension to hold a yearly, one-day customer
appreciation outdoor party; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a resolution approving a Conditional
Use Permit to allow temporary outdoor seating and the outdoor sales, possession, and
consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for this property
with appropriate conditions, and the Permit becomes effective once all conditions have
been met.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the amendment to the licensed premise description is hereby approved and the
applicant is authorized to amend the alcohol application currently on file in the City
Clerk’s Office to include the temporary area of the outdoor premise extension one day,
per year in the month of July, per the Conditional Use Permit.

Dated this 15th day of June 2015

___________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for BRBK,
LLC, d/b/a Alibi Bar and Grill, located at 1180 Madison Road, Wendy K. Drake, Agent, for a Temporary Outdoor
Premises Extension

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

BRBK, LLC, d/b/a Alibi Bar and Grill, located at 1180 Madison Road, Wendy K. Drake, Agent, has applied for an
amendment to a “Class B” fermented Malt Beverage and Intoxicating Liquor License to amend the license to add a
temporary outdoor premise extension to hold a yearly, one-day customer appreciation outdoor party.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The applicant applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor seating area and temporary
outdoor sales, possession, and consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District with the
Division of Planning and Building Services Department. The Conditional Use Permit was referred to the June 3,
2015 Plan Commission meeting and will return to the City Council meeting for approval on the June 15, 2015.

2. The ABLCC reviewed this item on June 9, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the
License to serve alcohol in the temporary outdoor seating area.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goals #3 and #4

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council consideration and action on the amendment license application.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Resolution, Report, Application, and Map







RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CLASS “B” BEER AND RESERVE “CLASS

B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR LUCY’S #7 BURGER BAR, LLC, D/B/A LUCY’S
BURGER BAR #7 FOR AN OUTDOOR PREMISE EXTENSION

WHEREAS, an application has been received to amend the licensed premise
description for Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, LLC, d/b/a Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, located at 430
East Grand Avenue, Suite 102; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of the amendment for the purpose of adding an outdoor seating area to the
licensed premise description; and

WHEREAS, the Division of Planning & Building Services has approved a
Sidewalk Café License to allow an outdoor seating and outdoor sales in a Business
Improvement District, for this property with appropriate conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the amendment to the licensed premise description is hereby approved and the
applicant is authorized to amend the alcohol application currently on file in the City
Clerk’s Office to include the outdoor premise extension.

Dated this 15th day of June 2015

___________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Lucy’s
Burger Bar #7, d/b/a Lucy’s Burger Bar #7, Emily Hopper, Agent for an Outdoor Premises Extension

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, LLC, d/b/a Lucy’s Burger Bar #7, located at 430 East Grand Avenue, Suite #102, has applied for
an amendment to a “Class B” fermented Malt Beverage and Intoxicating Liquor License to amend the license to add an
outdoor seating area to the licensed premise description.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The applicant applied for and was approved for a Sidewalk Café License from the Division of Planning and
Building Services to allow outdoor seating and outdoor sales in a Business Improvement District.

2. The ABLCC reviewed this item on June 9, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the
amendment to the License to serve alcohol in the outdoor seating area.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goals #3 and #4

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council consideration and action on the amendment license application.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Resolution, Report, Application, Map and Letter from Division of Planning and Building Services









RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart
Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road, is Michael A. Lane, Jr.; and

WHEREAS, Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart Supercenter #2532, has
requested and the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended
that the Agent be changed to Leah R. Wampole.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the Agent for the alcohol beverage license for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, Wal-Mart
Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road, is hereby changed to Leah R.
Wampole.

Dated this 15th day of June 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving Change of Agent for Alcohol Beverage License for Wal-Mart Supercenter #2532, located
at 2785 Milwaukee Road from Michael A. Lane, Jr to Leah R. Wampole.

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road has requested that the
Change of Agent be changed to Leah R. Wampole.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart Supercenter has appointed Leah R. Wampole as Agent, Ms. Wampole
is a resident of Wisconsin, and otherwise meets the qualifications for the appointment as required by state law.

2. The ABLCC reviewed this item on June 9, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the
Change of Agent.

Conformance to Strategic Plan: N/A

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council consideration and approval of the Change of Agent.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Resolution, Report, Schedule of Appointment and Auxiliary Questionnaire









RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut,
located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, is Juan Mendoza Ochoa; and

WHEREAS, Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, has requested and the
Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended that the Agent be
changed to Elliott Stubbendick.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the Agent for the alcohol beverage license for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza
Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, is hereby changed to Elliott Stubbendick.

Dated this 15th day of June 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

___________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving Change of Agent for Alcohol Beverage License and Renewal of Class “B” Beer and
“Class B” Liquor License for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Last month, Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue had requested that William C. Allen be
appointed the new agent. At the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee meeting (ABLCC) on May 12, 2015 it was
determined that Mr. Allen did not meet the qualifications to be appointed agent in that he was not a resident of the State of
Wisconsin for 90 days prior to the date of application. Due to the failure to appoint a qualified agent, Pizza Hut was
prohibited from selling alcohol until a qualified agent could be appointed. Further, because of the lack of a qualified agent,
the annual renewal of the license was removed from the May 12, 2015 ABLCC agenda.

Pizza Hut has now requested the appointment of Elliot Stubbendick as agent for the company. Mr. Stubbendick meets
the qualifications of an agent. Further, now with a qualified agent, the annual renewal of the Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor license application can proceed.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut has appointed Elliott Stubbendick as Agent. Mr. Stubbendick is a resident
of Wisconsin, and otherwise meets the qualifications for the appointment as required by state law

2. The ABLCC reviewed this item on June 9, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend the Change of Agent
and renewal of the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License.

Conformance to Strategic Plan: N/A

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council approval of the Change of Agent and renewal of the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Resolutions, Report, Schedule of Appointment and Auxiliary Questionnaire







RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL FOR

ROCKFORD PIZZA, LLC, D/B/A PIZZA HUT

WHEREAS, an renewal application has been received for a Class “B” Beer
and “Class B” Liquor License from Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, Elliott
Stubbendick, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee
recommended approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the
2015-2016 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the renewal Class “B” Beer
and “Class B” Liquor License for July 1, 2015 – Jun 30, 2016, for Rockford Pizza,
LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue is hereby approved.

Dated this 15th day of June 2015.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk





CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan, 1105 East Grand Avenue, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue Madison Road – Council
Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Matt Finnegan, on behalf of FPS Rental Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a boarding
house in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue. The applicant is seeking a permit to
establish and operate a boarding house consisting of four sleeping rooms as well as one efficiency apartment to oversee
the property.

Key Issues:
 The applicant has proposed the opening of a boarding house with four sleeping rooms and one efficiency

apartment that will serve as an overseer of the property.
 The tenants will have access to a common area with one bathroom, a dining room, and a kitchenette with sink.

Laundry facilities will also be available on-site.
 A Location & Zoning Map and the application are attached.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 Referral to the Plan Commission for the June 17, 2015 meeting.
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on July 6, 2015.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Zoning and Location Map, Application



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan, 1105 East Grand Avenue, Council Referral



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan, 1105 East Grand Avenue, Council Referral



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan, 1105 East Grand Avenue, Council Referral



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application for an Amended Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 2100 Newark Road – Council
Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: June 15, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Steven Franks of 3 Franks Services LLC has filed an application to amend an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to
allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH, Development Holding District, for the property located
at 2100 Newark Road.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant is currently operating his asphalt paving business at this location in accordance with a 2014 CUP.
 The applicant has proposed the construction of a 3,000 square-foot office & storage addition to an existing

storage/shop building, along with temporary use of a converted recreational vehicle that will be used as office
space during the construction process.

 The proposed project is considered a major change in the use of the property, and requires Plan Commission and
City Council approval of an amended CUP.

 A site sketch and application are attached to this report.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the June 17, 2015 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on July 6, 2015

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: 2014 CUP, Site Sketch, and Application



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Referral



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Referral



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Referral



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Referral





RESOLUTION APPROVING COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF
GROUND LEASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FOR OLYMPIAN HILLS APARTMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is the owner of the property commonly known as 431 and

405 Olympian Boulevard; and

WHEREAS, the City and Beloit Mature Housing, LLC are parties to a Development

Agreement and a Ground Lease for the subject property; and

WHEREAS, Beloit Mature Housing LLC, is seeking to obtain a loan to re-finance and

provide additional funding for rehabilitation of the development; and

WHEREAS, as the Lessor of the subject property, the City is required to consent to a

collateral assignment in order for Beloit Mature Housing LLC to secure financing; and

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable to said assignment to encourage the further

development of the subject property;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is

hereby, authorized to execute the Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development

Agreement any document necessary to carry out the terms of the Agreement on behalf of the

City of Beloit.

Adopted this 15th day of June, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk
tdh\res\Olympian Hills Collateral Assignment = res = 20150605



 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL 

 

Topic: 

Resolution Approving Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement for Olympian 

Hills Apartments 

Date: June 15, 2015 

Presenter: Julie Christensen Department: Community Development 

Overview/Background Information: 

In 1997, the City entered into a Development Agreement with Beloit Mature Adult Housing, LLC to redevelop the Beloit Community 

Services Center, the former Beloit Hospital site.  Later in 1997, this development agreement was amended to include Community 

Action, Inc. as the sole member of the LLC, remove the market-rate component from the development, make a slight change in 

financing, provide a land lease for 99 years for $1/year, and provide an environmental indemnification provision.  A ground lease 

was also executed later in 1997, and CSM was recorded which divided the property into two parcels: 405 and 431 Olympian 

Boulevard. 

 

Key Issues (maximum of 5): 

1. Tax credits were awarded for the redevelopment of 431 Olympian Boulevard into a 47-unit apartment complex for persons 55 

years and older.  After 15 years, it is possible for the developer of the tax credit project to buy-out the investment partner, 

dissolve the for-profit LLC, and take full ownership of the property.  The Beloit Mature Adult Housing, LLC, is opting to buy-out 

the investment partner.  The only remaining member of the LLC will be Community Action. 

 

2. As part of this buy-out, the LLC is obtaining a mortgage loan from Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority 

(WHEDA).  This loan will be used to re-finance the project and provide additional funding for rehabilitation of the building.  

WHEDA is requiring the Collateral Assignment of the Ground Lease and Development Agreement. 

 

3. The City has had no issues with the current management of the apartment complex and is supportive of its continued 

ownership of this property and its efforts to upgrade the building. 

 

4. The Collateral Assignment that is being requested of the City does not inhibit the City in any material respect.  The Ground Lease 

and Development Agreement would remain in effect. 

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):  

Approval of this project would conform with Goal #5’s stated purpose of applying sound, sustainable practices to promote a high 

quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization and new development.   

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and 

natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.): 

• Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels          N/A 

• Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature          N/A 

• Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems          N/A 

• Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently     This assignment would help meet the needs of Beloit 

Mature Adult Housing, LLC, while at the same time would have no negative impact on the City of Beloit. 
If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space 

Action required/Recommendation: 

Recommendation to Council to approve resolution authorizing collateral assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Beloit.  There is a minimum guaranteed payment and $1 lease payment which will continue 

even if the collateral assignment is approved. 

Attachments: 

Location Map; Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement 
 





Document Number

COLLATERAL
ASSIGNMENT OF
GROUND LEASE AND
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Name and Return Address:

Legal Division
Wisconsin Housing and Economic
Development Authority

Post Office Box 1728
Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1728

See Exhibit A attached

Parcel Identification Number

Drafted by:
Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority
201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 700
P.O. Box 1728
Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1728



2

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF GROUND LEASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF GROUND LEASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
(the "Assignment") is made effective as of _________________, 2015, by and between BELOIT
MATURE ADULT HOUSING, L.L.C., a Wisconsin limited liability company, whose principal office is
located at 20 Eclipse Center, Beloit, Wisconsin 53511 ("Borrower"), WISCONSIN HOUSING AND
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a Wisconsin public body corporate and politic, whose
principal office is located at 201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 700, Madison, Wisconsin 53703
("Lender"), and the CITY OF BELOIT, a municipal corporation of the State of Wisconsin, whose principal
address is 100 State Street, Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin 53511 (the "City") (collectively referred to as
"Parties") (individually as "Party").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of certain land located in the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin, as more particularly described on Exhibit A attached to this Assignment (the "Land");

WHEREAS, the City and Borrower have entered into a Ground Lease, dated December 12, 1997,
and recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Rock County, Wisconsin (the "Registrar"), on
December 17, 1997, as Document No. 1353090, pursuant to which Borrower leases the Land from the
City (the "Lease");

WHEREAS, the City and Borrower have entered into a C.C. Amended Development Agreement,
dated August 4, 1997, by and between Borrower and the City for development of the Land, and recorded
with the Registrar on December 17, 1997, as Document No. 1353089 (the "Development Agreement").

WHEREAS, Borrower is the owner of a leasehold interest in in the Land created by the Lease,

and the improvements on the Land that make up the 47-unit elderly rental housing development known

as Olympian Hills Apartments (the leasehold interest and the improvements collectively, the

"Development");

WHEREAS, Lender is making a mortgage loan to Borrower in the original aggregate principal
amount of $865,800.00 (the "Loan"), which Loan will be used to re-finance and provide additional funding
for rehabilitation of the Development, which is secured by, among other things, a Multifamily Mortgage,
Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement, of even date herewith (the "Mortgage"); and

WHEREAS, in order to make such Loan, Lender is requiring that Borrower enters into this
Assignment, and that the City consents to this Assignment as a condition of obtaining the Loan.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good
and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties
agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are adopted by the Parties, incorporated herein by

reference and made a part of this Assignment.

2. Assignment. As a condition of obtaining the Loan, Borrower hereby assigns, grants,
and conveys to Lender all of its rights, title, and interest under the Lease and Development Agreement for
collateral purposes. The Parties agree that such assignment is being done solely for the purpose of
securing all payments and obligations of Borrower in relation to all loans from Lender to Borrower for
rehabilitation or other purposes in relation to the Development, and all associated loan obligations of
Borrower. Lender will not exercise its rights under this Assignment unless Borrower is in default under
the terms and conditions of any note, line of credit, loan document, this Assignment, or any other
obligation secured by this Assignment.



3

3. Payment and Performance. Borrower agrees to pay to Lender all amounts owed to

Lender that are secured by this Assignment in a timely manner, and Borrower agrees to strictly perform:

(1) all of Borrower's obligations under this Assignment; (2) all of Borrower's obligations under the Lease;

(3) all of Borrower's obligations under any associated or related loan documents as issued by Lender in

relation to the Development (the "Loan Documents"); and (4) all obligations of Borrower under the

Development Agreement. The Lease, the Loan Documents and the Development Agreement are

collectively referred to herein as the "Agreements". So long as Borrower is not in default under the terms

of this Assignment and not in default under the terms of the Agreements, Borrower shall remain in sole

possession and control of the Mortgaged Property (as such term is defined in the Mortgage) and be

considered to be the lessee under the Lease.

4. Notice and Cure Rights. The City shall deliver to Lender a true and correct copy of

each notice, demand, complaint or request sent by the City to Borrower under or with respect to the

Lease and/or the Development Agreement. The City shall provide such copies to Lender at the same

time the City provides the originals to Borrower. In the event Borrower is in default under any of the terms

of the Lease or the Development Agreement, or in the event any such default is about to take place,

Borrower and the City shall immediately notify Lender in writing of such default or imminent default.

Lender may (but shall not be obligated to do so) make any payment, perform any obligation and take any

other action that Borrower would have the right to pay, perform or take under the Lease or Development

Agreement which Lender deems necessary or desirable to cure such default, and Lender and its

authorized agents shall have the right at any time or from time to time to enter the Mortgaged Property, or

any part thereof, to such extent and as often as Lender, in its discretion, deems necessary or desirable or

to cure such default, subject to the rights of the tenants and occupants of the Mortgaged Property. The

City shall accept or reject any such cure made by Lender on the same basis as if such cure were made

by Borrower. Lender may exercise its rights to cure such default immediately after receipt of notice of a

default by Borrower and without regard to any grace period provided to Borrower in the Lease or

Development Agreement to cure the default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Lease or the

Development Agreement, the City shall provide Lender with the greater of (i) any cure period provided

under the Lease or Development Agreement, as applicable, or (ii) 120 days, to cure any default of

Borrower under the Lease or the Development Agreement; provided, however, that if the default is of a

nature that it cannot be cured within any such cure period, then Lender shall have such additional time as

is reasonably necessary to cure the default provided Lender commences to cure the default within such

initial cure period and is reasonably and diligently prosecuting such cure to completion.

5. Warranties and Representations by Borrower. Borrower hereby represents and
warrants that as of the date of signing this Assignment, the following:

a. Ownership. Borrower is entitled to all rights and title under the Lease and has
not entered into any other loan obligation in relation to the Mortgaged Property.

b. Right to Assign. Borrower has full right and approval from the City to assign the
Lease for collateral purposes.

c. No Prior Assignment. Borrower has not conveyed or previously assigned any
right under the Lease prior to entering into this Assignment.

d. No Further Transfer. Borrower will not sell, assign, encumber, or otherwise
dispose of any of Borrower's rights in the Lease other than those issued in this
Assignment.

6. Warranties and Representations By Borrower and City. Borrower and the City
individually hereby represent and warrant that as of the date of signing this Assignment (a) the Lease and
Development Agreement are in full force and effect in accordance with their terms and (b) there is no
existing default by Borrower or the City under the Lease or Development Agreement and no event has



4

occurred which, with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default by
Borrower or the City under the Lease or Development Agreement. Borrower and the City individually
further represent that attached hereto as Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively, are true, correct and
complete copies of the Lease and the Development Agreement and any and all amendments thereto.

7. Lender's Right to Step Into the Lease. Lender shall have the right, but not the
obligation, at any time upon a default by Borrower under this Assignment or any of the Agreements to
exercise its rights under this Assignment to become the lessee under the Lease and to enter upon and
take possession of the Mortgaged Property and perform all of Borrower's duties under the Lease and/or
Development Agreement with the City with respect to the Mortgaged Property. In the event Lender
exercises its right to become the lessee under the Lease, Lender shall have the right to cure any default
by Borrower in accordance with the terms of paragraph 4 above. To the extent that Lender steps into the
Lease in place of Borrower, Lender specifically assumes all obligations and liabilities of Borrower
pursuant to the Lease and the Development Agreement with respect to the Mortgaged Property.

Prior to stepping into the Lease, Lender shall notify the City in writing of its intent to take such action.
Lender's notification to the City shall identify the specific default(s) of Borrower. Borrower agrees that the
City shall be able to reasonably rely upon the information in Lender's notice and to take all reasonable
actions in reliance upon such notice. Borrower releases, and specifically waives, all claims for damages
under any theory against the City based upon the City's reasonable reliance upon Lender's notice.

8. Modification of Lease and Development Agreement. The City and Borrower agree
that they shall not modify, amend, or terminate the Lease or the Development Agreement without the
prior written consent of Lender.

9. Lender's Right to Confirm with the City. Lender shall have the right at any time, even
though no default may have occurred under this Assignment or any of the Agreements, to confirm with
the City that no default has occurred in relation to Borrower's performance under the Lease or the
Development Agreement.

10. Consent by City. The City hereby consents to this Assignment so long as Lender does
not exercise its rights to assume the obligations of Borrower under the Lease or the Development
Agreement until such time as there is an actual default by Borrower under this Assignment or the
Agreements.

11. Legal Expenses. If any legal action or other proceeding between Lender and Borrower
is brought for the enforcement of this Assignment, or because of an alleged or actual dispute, breach,
default or misrepresentation between Lender and Borrower in connection with any provision of this
Assignment, and Lender shall be successful in the enforcement of this Assignment, Lender shall be
entitled to recover from Borrower reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in such action or
proceeding in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

12. No Waiver. The failure of Lender to insist upon any one or more instances of strict
performance of any of the terms of this Assignment or to institute any action, including the rights and
privileges granted to it shall not be construed as a waiver of such terms.

13. Binding Effect. This Assignment binds and inures to the benefit of the Parties and their
respective successors and permitted assigns, as the case may be. The City and Borrower acknowledge
that Lender may assign all of its right, title and interest in and to this Assignment to a third party including,
without limitation, any third party that desires to acquire Borrower's interest in the Mortgaged Property at a
foreclosure sale, and that such third party shall have all of the rights of Lender hereunder including,
without limitation, the right to become the lessee under the Lease.

14. Termination. This Assignment shall terminate upon Borrower's repayment in full of all
amounts due and owing to Lender under the Loan Documents.

15. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.



5

(a) This Assignment shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin,
("Wisconsin"), without giving effect to conflicts of laws principles.

(b) Borrower agrees that any controversy arising under or in relation to this
Assignment shall be litigated exclusively in Wisconsin. The state and federal
courts and authorities with jurisdiction in Wisconsin shall have exclusive
jurisdiction over all controversies which shall arise under or in relation to this
Assignment. Borrower irrevocably consents to service, jurisdiction, and venue of
such courts for any such litigation and waives any other venue to which it might
be entitled by virtue of domicile, habitual residence or otherwise.

16. Waiver. THE PARTIES EACH (A) COVENANT AND AGREE NOT TO ELECT A TRIAL
BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY ISSUE ARISING OUT OF THIS ASSIGNMENT OR THE
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES THAT IS TRIABLE OF RIGHT BY A JURY AND (B) WAIVE
ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH ISSUE TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY
SUCH RIGHT EXISTS NOW OR IN THE FUTURE. THIS WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS
SEPARATELY GIVEN BY EACH PARTY, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WITH THE BENEFIT OF
COMPETENT LEGAL COUNSEL (OR THE OPPURTUNITY TO CONSULT LEGAL COUNSEL, WHICH
SUCH PARTY HAS WAIVED).

17. Counterparts. This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW.]



Signature Page to Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and year first above
written.

BORROWER:

Beloit Mature Adult Housing, L.L.C.,
a Wisconsin limited liability company

By: Community Action, Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties,
a Minnesota non-stock corporation
Manager

By:
Cecilia Dever
Executive Director

LENDER:

Wisconsin Housing and Economic
Development Authority

By:_____________________________
Mickey N. Conrad
General Counsel

CITY:

City of Beloit,
a municipal corporation of the State of Wisconsin

By:
Lori S. Curtis Luther
City Manager

Attest: ___________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk

[ACKNOWLEDGEMENT PAGES FOLLOW.]



Acknowledgement Page to Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) SS

COUNTY OF ______________ )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2015, by Cecilia Dever,
Executive Director of Community Action, Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties, Manager of Beloit Mature
Adult Housing, L.L.C.

*
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My Commission expires: ______________.
*print name

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) SS

COUNTY OF DANE )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2015, by Mickey N. Conrad,
General Counsel of the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority.

_______________________________________
Kathleen A. Kober
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My Commission expires: May 8, 2016

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)SS

COUNTY OF ROCK )

Personally appeared before me this ____ day of ______________, 2015, the above-named Lori
S. Curtis Luther, City Manager and Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk, to me known to be such City Manager
and Clerk of the City of Beloit, and to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing agreement
as such officers of said entity, by its authority.

Elizabeth A. Krueger
Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin
My commission is permanent.



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

Lot 1 Certified Survey Map dated November 6, 1997 and recorded November 20, 1997 in Volume 20,
Pages 384 and 385 of Certified Survey Maps for Rock County, Wisconsin, as Document #1350022, being
part of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map #1180347 as recorded in Volume 16, Pages 119, 120 and 121, of
Certified Survey Maps, being part of the NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 26, T.1N., R.12E. of the 4th
P.M., City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin. ALSO, the North 28 feet of Olympian Boulevard right of
way, now vacated, and being adjacent thereto. Together with a 30 foot easement for ingress and egress
over Lot 2, of said Certified Survey Map recorded November 20, 1997, in Volume 20, Pages 384 and 385,
as Document #1350022.

Tax Parcel Number: 12660650



EXHIBIT B

Lease

































Exhibit C

Development Agreement
































































	Monday, June 15, 2015
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a. Proclamation recognizing July as Park and Recreation Month  (Ramsey)

	4. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor seating area and temporary outdoor sales, possession, and consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for property located at 1180 Madison Road (Alibi Bar & Grill)  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

	5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6. CONSENT AGENDA
	a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of June 1st and special meeting of June 4, 2015  (Stottler)
	b. Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for BRBK, LLC, d/b/a Alibi Bar and Grill, located at 1180 Madison Road, Wendy K. Drake, Agent, for a Temporary Outdoor Premises Extension  (Stottler)ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	c. Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, LLC, located at 430 East Grand Avenue, Suite 102, Emily Hopper, Agent, for an Outdoor Premises Extension  (Stottler)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	d. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road, from Michael A. Lane, Jr. to Leah R. Wampole  (Stottler) ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	e. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, from Juan Mendoza Ochoa to Elliott Stubbendick  (Stottler) ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	f. Resolution approving Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License renewal for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, Elliott Stubbendick, Agent, for License Period July 1, 2015 -June 30, 2016  (Stottler)
	g. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a boarding house in a C-1, Office District, for property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue  (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission
	h. Application for an amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in a DH, Development Holding District, for property located at 2100 Newark Road  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission

	7. ORDINANCES
	8. APPOINTMENTS
	9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a. Resolution approving Collateral Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement for Olympian Hills Apartments  (Christensen)

	12. ADJOURNMENT

